
 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY                          TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
FEBRUARY 15, 2024 – 2:00 P.M.     4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one 
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL. 

NOTE: Citizens who wish to speak during Public Participation about any subject that is not on the meeting 
agenda should fill out the Citizen Participation Request form and submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the 
start of the meeting.   

4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 

5. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that 
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set 
forth in Resolution 2021-11 and include the following guidelines: 

• Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not 
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda. 

• Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record. 
• Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions; we want to hear them. 
• Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor. 

While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more 
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you 
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly 
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope 
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand 
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your 
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:   

A. Proclamation – World Encephalitis Day 

7.  CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not 
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the 
consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council. 
Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove 
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an 



2/15/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 2 of 3 

item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral 
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New 
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being 
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade Council to remove the item from the Consent 
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion. 

A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes – January 18, 2024. 

B. Request for Continued Support for the South Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project 

C. Marine Science Center Turtle Day – request for use of Town property. 

8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING:  

A. Consideration of a three-year extension of Mead & Hunt’s engineering services 
contract. 

B. Lien abatement request: Cynthia House and Rhonda Witwer – 4620 Riverwalk 
Village Court #7302  

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 

10.   PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS:  

A. Lien foreclosures as recommended by the Code Enforcement Board: 

• Case #2018-148: 42 Jana Drive, Owner: Frank Kohlweiss 

• Case #2021-217: 48 Inlet Harbor Road, Owner: Southern Bell Telephone & 
Telegraph Company 

• Case #2022-684: 4620 Riverwalk Village Court #7302, Owners: Cynthia House & 
Rhonda Witwer 

• Case #2022-758: 4505 South Atlantic Avenue #703, Owners: Doris & Jerry Clark, 
etc. 

11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS: None.  

12.  OLD BUSINESS: None. 

13. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Discussion - Proposals for a memorial tribute to Jeff Miller. 

B. Request to change the May 2024 regular Town Council meeting date. – requested 
by Councilmember Milano 

14.    FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 



2/15/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 3 of 3 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 

15.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER. 

16.  FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY. 

17.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes 
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town 
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda. 

19.   ADJOURNMENT. 

Upcoming Town Council meeting(s) and Important date(s): 

• Thursday, February 29, 2024: 6:00 p.m. – Town Hall meeting 
• Thursday, March 21, 2024, 2:00 p.m. – Regular Council meeting 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a 
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  Persons who require accommodation in order to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce 
Inlet Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request such assistance. 



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards. 

Summary: 

A. Proclamation – World Encephalitis Day

Suggested motion:  None required. 

Requested by:   Mayor Paritsky 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   6 





Report to Town Council 

Topic: Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Town Council regular meeting minutes –
January 18, 2024.

B. Request for continued support for the South Peninsula Drive
Sidewalk Project

C. Marine Science Center Turtle Day – request for use of Town
property.

Summary: See attached staff reports. 

Suggested motion: 
To approve the Consent agenda as presented. 

Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   7 



Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council 2 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3 

January 18, 2024 4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 

8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance. 9 

10 
3. ROLL CALL: 11 

Town Council: 12 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 13 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 14 
Councilmember White, Seat #3  15 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 16 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 17 

18 
Mayor Paritsky shared the news of long-time employee Jeff Miller’s passing, and asked that once 19 
comments begin, residents and Council share ideas in ways that his memory may be honored. She 20 
then reviewed the protocol for filling out the Citizens’ Participation request forms for agenda item 21 
#10. 22 

Staff Members Present: 23 
Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 24 
Mr. Barber, IT Technician 25 
Ms. Bressett, Accountant 26 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 27 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 28 
Ms. Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 29 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 30 
Mr. Griffith, Public Works Director 31 
Ms. Hall, Accountant/Grants Coordinator 32 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager 33 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 34 
Ms. McColl, Finance Director 35 
Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 36 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 37 
Attorney Shepard, Town Attorney 38 

39 
4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. There were 40 
no changes. 41 

42 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember Milano. 43 
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 44 

Item 7-A



Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7 

5. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:45 
46 

A. Proclamations report. – Mayor Paritsky announced she signed proclamations for Brittany47 
Shone Day (as Longstreet Elementary Teacher of the Year) and Black History Month.48 

49 
B. Presentation on World Encephalitis Day. – Ms. Kay Atwood gave a presentation on50 

World Encephalitis Day; she showed a video that explains what encephalitis is and how it51 
affects people. She explained how encephalitis has impacted her life. She asks that every52 
Mayor proclaim February 22nd as Encephalitis Awareness Day and hopes Volusia County53 
can be the first county in the United States to properly acknowledge the day. She explained54 
how famous landmarks around the world light up red on World Encephalitis Awareness55 
Day. Mayor Paritsky asked for a consensus from Council to approve the creation of a56 
proclamation; Council approved. Mr. Disher stated there has been a discussion to light up57 
Town offices in red, in honor of Encephalitis Awareness Day.58 

59 
C. Recognition of Kim Bressett for being selected as Ponce Inlet Employee of the Year.60 

Ms. Cherbano explained the process of selecting the Employee of the Year. Mr. Disher61 
provided a summary of Ms. Bressett’s employment history, dedication, and background.62 
Mayor Paritsky presented Ms. Bressett with a vase for Employee of the Year.63 

64 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to65 
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked for public 66 
comments – hearing none, she closed public comments. 67 

68 
A. Town Council Regular meeting minutes – December 18, 202369 

70 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember 71 
Milano. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 72 

73 
7. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 74 
MEETING 75 

76 
A. Appointment to the Code Enforcement Board. Ms. Cherbano reviewed the staff77 

memorandum which outlined the Board’s membership, attendance log, and applicant’s 78 
information. Ms. Rij was present and introduced herself to Council. 79 

80 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, she closed public participation. 81 

82 
Mayor Paritsky moved to appoint Karen Rij to Alternate Seat #2; seconded by Councilmember 83 
White. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 84 

85 
B. Appointments to the Planning Board. Ms. Cherbano reviewed the staff86 

memorandum which outlined the Board’s membership, attendance log, and applicant’s 87 
information. Mr. Revak and Mr. Young were present. Mayor Paritsky suggested that Mr. Revak 88 
be appointed to Alternate Seat #1, and Mr. Young be appointed to Alternate Seat #2. 89 

https://youtu.be/w3sR_RHit9s?si=tm_BLFascX8z1dzD


Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7 

Mayor Paritsky opened public participation regarding the appointments – hearing none, she closed90 
public participation. 91 

92 
Mayor Paritsky moved to appoint Michael Revak to Alternate Seat #1 and Jospeh Young to 93 
Alternate Seat #2; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 94 

95 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: *Mayor Paritsky requested 96 
Mr. Shepard to review the proceedings on Quasi-Judicial matters relating to the Final 97 
Development Plan for the Marine Science Center at this point in the agenda* 98 

99 
A. Final Development Plan: #37-2023; review of final site development plan for100 

the Learning Center expansion at the Marine Science Center, 100 Lighthouse Dr.; per Sec 101 
6.6.6 of the LUDC. – Attorney Shepard reviewed the proceedings of Quasi-Judicial matters. 102 
Councilmember White disclosed his ex-parte communications as it relates to this item; he attended 103 
the Planning Board meeting at which this plan was presented, and discussed the correspondence 104 
he had with Marine Science Center Manager Chad Macfie. Vice-Mayor Smith requested 105 
clarification on whether he would be able to discuss concerns regarding the area around the Marine 106 
Science Center; Mr. Shepard clarified that questions can be asked related to anything what is 107 
presented, but approval cannot be conditioned on something outside of what the code requires. 108 
Ms. Rippey presented the final development plan regarding the proposed expansion at the Marine 109 
Science Center. The project includes the addition of 2,722 sq ft of new building space to include a 110 
new classroom, turtle quarantine deck, and parking lot expansion. Applicant representative John 111 
Dillard and Volusia County staff were present to address any questions. The application was 112 
reviewed by the Town’s development review team, and the final plan was submitted in October 113 
2023. In December 2023, pursuant to LUDC 4.10.5, the landscape plan was reviewed and 114 
recommended for approval by the Cultural Services Board and in accordance with LUDC 6.6, the 115 
final development plan was reviewed and recommended for approval by the Planning Board. Staff 116 
found the FDP in compliance with specific criteria set forth in LUDC 2.16.E.1 for the Lighthouse 117 
Overlay District. Ms. Rippey reviewed the parking lot expansion and tree removals and noted tree 118 
mitigation is not required given the number and density of trees remaining on the property. Staff 119 
recommends Town Council approve the Marine Science Center expansion project. 120 
Councilmember White asked if the sewer line replacements could be done at the same time as this 121 
project. Mr. Clay Ervin, Director of Growth and Resource Management for Volusia County, 122 
explained these are separate projects and the contractors will be working concurrently to minimize 123 
disruption. Councilmember White requested clarification on the width of the building once 124 
complete. Discussion ensued and Mr. Disher explained the width requirement and clarified that 125 
this is being treated as one structure. Vice-Mayor Smith questioned if there would be an increase 126 
in traffic; Ms. Rippey explained there will be no additional programs or employees, therefore, 127 
there will be minimal additional daily traffic. Councilmember White asked if there are any new 128 
stormwater retention areas being developed; Ms. Rippey noted a new retention area is being 129 
developed for this project adjacent to the boat ramp parking lot. Mayor Paritsky opened public 130 
participation: Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802 S Peninsula Dr, asked who the owner of the land is and if 131 
they have been notified of the development; Mr. Disher stated the State of Florida is the owner 132 
and they were informed as part of the public notification. Mr. Bullard asked if the Federal 133 
Department of Interior has been informed to be sure it is consistent with the original establishment; 134 
Mr. Ervin explained this information is detailed in their annual report. Mr. Bullard asked if there 135 

https://acrobat.adobe.com/id/urn:aaid:sc:va6c2:4518c1b4-ccff-46b8-8229-c2ec302a156d


Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7 

will be additional advertising or outreach for this expansion; Mr. Ervin replied not at this time. Mr. 136 
Bullard asked if the project was reviewed in any way for LEED (Leadership in Energy and 137 
Environmental Design) certification; Mr. Ervin said no. Mr. James Hunt, Port Orange resident, 138 
commended everyone for their comments and the presentation from the county. He explained the 139 
history of the Marine Science Center land, and developments that were previously proposed. 140 
Mayor Paritsky closed public participation. 141 

142 
Mayor Paritsky made a motion based upon the staff report dated January 8 presented by Patty 143 
Rippey, the testimony of County staff, the recommendation of approval of the landscape plan by 144 
the Cultural Services Board and review and recommendation for approval of the final 145 
Development plan by the Planning Board, and the Town Council finding that LUDC  Section 146 
2.16.E.1 5 criteria have been met, and that the general criteria applicable to all development plans 147 
under Section 6.6.6.B.5.b have been met, that Council approves the Learning Center Expansion 148 
Final Development Plan. ; seconded by Councilmember White. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the 149 
following vote: Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – yes; Councilmember Villanella – 150 
yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 151 

152 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS:  153 

*Presented as item 8-A*154 
155 

10. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens participation: Mr.156 
Thomas Magnetti, 5 Beacon Court, addressed his safety concern regarding the signage on 157 
Peninsula Drive, north of Inlet Harbor Road. He asked Council to consider two additional signs 158 
stating pedestrians have the right-of-way, not bicyclists. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if the bicyclists 159 
were adults or children; Mr. Magnetti clarified they are adults. Mr. Disher stated the Police 160 
Department could investigate this further. Ms. Jair Kessler, 81 Buschman Drive, requested the 161 
Town host an annual paper shredding event at the Community Center. Mr. Jeff Wilner, CSA board 162 
representative, 4670 Links Village Dr, and Mr. Rick Gray explained they are appealing to Council 163 
for financial assistance in the funding of the demolition and reconstruction of the Harbour Village 164 
boardwalk, which is privately owned but open to the public. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if they could 165 
gauge the number of residents versus public that use the boardwalk; Mr. Wilner explained that it 166 
is difficult to do as people park nearby and walk to the boardwalk. Councilmember White asked if 167 
they would be required to receive more than one bid; Mr. Disher explained the applicants would 168 
be required to follow the Town’s purchasing procedures once Council makes a decision regarding 169 
financial assistance. 170 

171 
Mayor Paritsky closed public participation. 172 

173 
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:174 

175 
A. Resolution 2024-01 - Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-01 by title only.176 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 177 
URGING MEMBERS OF THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO SUPPORT THE 2024 178 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES’ LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM; PROVIDING FOR 179 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; AND 180 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Mayor Paritsky provided a brief explanation for the 181 



Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7 

importance of showing support towards the League’s legislative platform. Councilmember Milano 182 
had a question regarding the public safety recruitment and retention; he requested Mayor Paritsky 183 
obtain more information on why the teacher vacancy statistics were omitted, and what will be done 184 
regarding said vacancies. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation; hearing none, public 185 
participation was closed. 186 

187 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2024-01 as presented; seconded by 188 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember 189 
Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – 190 
yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 191 

192 
B. Resolution 2024-02 - Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-02 by title only.193 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 194 
FLORIDA AMENDING RESOLUTION 2023-02 GOVERNING THE RULES OF ORDER 195 
FOR CONDUCTING TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS TO CHANGE THE TIME SUCH 196 
MEETINGS BEGIN, UNLESS REQUIRED OTHERWISE BY STATE LAW, AND TO 197 
MOVE THE “CITIZENS PARTICIPATION (FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS)” PORTION 198 
TOWARD THE BEGINNING OF THE AGENDA; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; 199 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 200 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Mr. Disher explained 201 
this resolution is a follow up to Council’s discussion last month regarding a trial period for changes 202 
to its rules of order. This would be a four-month trial period, changing the meeting start time from 203 
6:00 PM to 2:00 PM; the one exception, in accordance with state law, would be for budget 204 
meetings or rezonings to be presented after 5:00 PM. A discussion was held on the order of 205 
meetings in the past and how the temporary period was determined. Mayor Paritsky stated this will 206 
be discussed at the upcoming Town Hall meeting and explained the convenience of moving citizen 207 
participation further up in the agenda. Councilmember White commented that the Volusia County 208 
Council is currently having a similar discussion. He started a discussion on the difference between 209 
conducting meetings on different days of the week. Vice-Mayor Smith explained that if there is a 210 
subject brought up earlier in the day, staff can address it within the same day instead of having to 211 
wait for the next week. Attorney Shepard began a discussion on days he may have a  conflict with 212 
scheduling. Councilmember Milano suggested that the original trial should be completed first, and 213 
then re-evaluate afterward whether there should be other changes. Mayor Paritsky opened public 214 
participation; Ms. Cathy Harvey, 41 Loggerhead Court, expressed her interest in Wednesday 215 
meetings, but agreed with Councilmember Milano that too much change at once could be 216 
confusing. She requested clarification on the start time; Mayor Paritsky stated the trial will be for 217 
a 2:00 PM start. Ms. Jair Kessler, 81 Buschman Drive, stated the trial should only be for the 218 
meeting start time; she clarified that citizens participation should be left earlier on the agenda, 219 
permanently. Mayor Paritsky conferred with the Council regarding citizens participation and 220 
mentioned she would advocate for it to be presented earlier on the agenda. Mayor Paritsky closed 221 
public participation. 222 

223 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2024-02 as presented; seconded by 224 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember 225 
Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – 226 
yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 227 



Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7 

228 
C. Resolution 2024-03 - Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-03 by title only.229 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 230 
VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA ADOPTING THE GOALS OF THE TOWN FOR 231 
FISCAL YEARS 2023-2024 AND 2024-2025; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 232 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 233 
EFFECTIVE DATE. – Mr. Disher explained the completed goals have been removed, and the 234 
new goals are provided with the resolution. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation; hearing 235 
none, public participation was closed.  236 

237 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2024-03 as presented; seconded by 238 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember 239 
Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – 240 
yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 241 

242 
12. OLD BUSINESS: None.243 

244 
13. NEW BUSINESS: None.245 

246 
14. FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL:247 

248 
Mayor Paritsky requested there be a meaningful dialogue on the passing of long-time employee, 249 
Jeff Miller, to discuss ways in which his memory may be honored. Mr. Disher began by reading 250 
his obituary. Mayor Paritsky requested that this topic be brought back as an agenda item in the 251 
future, so that residents may give their input as well. Councilmember White asked that the Town 252 
honor Mr. Miller with a memorial in front of the oak tree at the entrance of the Public Works 253 
building. Vice-Mayor Smith suggested a plaque be dedicated to him posted on the Public Works 254 
building, or the oak tree. Mayor Paritsky suggested a bench. Ms. Karen Rij, Ponce Inlet citizen, 255 
said the Public Works building should be named after Mr. Miller. Mr. Mark Oebbecke, 4758 S 256 
Peninsula Drive, agreed and he also suggested the back of the Community Center could be 257 
dedicated to him, and a bench be placed. Mr. Disher stated he received an email from Ms. Nancy 258 
Epps who suggested planting a tree in his honor at Timucuan Oaks Park. 259 

260 
A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 – Vice-Mayor Smith requested an item be placed on261 

the next agenda to discuss the maintenance responsibilities of S Atlantic Avenue. He explained 262 
that in 1987, the Town received a letter stating that S. Atlantic Avenue starting at the northern edge 263 
of Beach Street, was to be maintained by the Town; he gave a brief history of the area. Mr. Disher 264 
explained this has been ongoing and staff will continue to try and have this addressed. He briefly 265 
explained what steps have been taken to address this in the past. Vice-Mayor Smith added that 266 
when the County recently paved S. Atlantic Avenue, they stopped at Beach Street. The County 267 
manager at that time promised they would pave it, but never did. 268 

269 
B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 – Councilmember Villanella requested270 

consideration to reappoint Mr. Wayne Josvai to the Transportation Planning Organization Citizens 271 
Advisory Committee. He provided a brief history of Mr. Josvai’s appointment to the organization. 272 

273 

https://www.news-journalonline.com/obituaries/pdtb0689454


Town Council January 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 – Councilmember White asked if any 274 
correspondence has been received regarding the Riverside Conservancy organization; Mr. Disher 275 
stated he will follow up with his contact. He attended the Volusia County Council meeting and 276 
provided an update on the easement agreements. He has put his neighbor, Mr. George Butler, in 277 
contact with Council Member Matt Reinhart regarding the dune renourishment project which was 278 
recently proposed at the County Council meeting; he provided an update on this as well. He 279 
explained there are only two residents with which there has been zero contact: Ms. Sowers, 4713 280 
S Atlantic Avenue and Mr. Lyons, 4911 S Atlantic Avenue. 281 

282 
D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Councilmember Milano acknowledged the283 

Soup & Salad event, as well as the attendants. He reminded everyone that the First-Step Shelter 284 
gala banquet is in February. The First-Step Shelter served over 5,000 meals in the last month. 285 

286 
E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 – Mayor Paritsky discussed a debate tournament that she287 

attended at the Bolles School in Jacksonville. She explained what was presented at the Roundtable 288 
of Elected Officials. A request was made at the Florida League of Cities advocacy meeting for 289 
very specific data from each city for purposes of providing legislators with the data they need to 290 
advocate the negative impacts for several bills that have been filed. Mayor Paritsky explained the 291 
bills further.  292 

293 
15. FROM THE TOWN MANAGER – Mr. Disher stated that Public Works will begin294 
cleaning the pipes in the northern half of Town beginning the week of February 5. He discussed 295 
updates to the stormwater system analysis around the Las Olas subdivision and the neighborhoods 296 
to the north and south. He explained that staff are working with FPL to provide additional lights 297 
in some of the darker areas on S Peninsula Drive. Mr. Disher provided an update to the Live Local 298 
Act legislation amendments being proposed. He reminded everyone of the upcoming Legends 299 
Parade. 300 

301 
16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY – Attorney Shepard discussed the Live Local Act and302 
Form 6. Vice-Mayor Smith asked how someone could argue an individual’s Form 6 report, and 303 
Mr. Shepard stated that it would be an ethics issue. 304 

305 
17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 – 16 only) – Mayor Paritsky opened public306 
participation; hearing none – she closed public comment. 307 

308 
18. ADJOURNMENT – With no further business, Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at309 
8:22 p.m. 310 

311 
Respectfully submitted by: 312 

313 
314 

Kim Cherbano, CMC, Town Clerk 315 
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 316 



MEMORANDUM 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering 

community excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value 

for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: February 5, 2024

Subject: Request for Continued Support for the S. Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2024 

Introduction 1 
Local governments that have applied for grant funding through the River-to-Sea Transportation 2 
Planning Organization (TPO) must annually provide a letter of continued support for their projects. 3 
These support letters reaffirm to the TPO that the local government sponsor of the project is still 4 
committed in terms of political and financial support. The Town’s S. Peninsula Drive sidewalk project 5 
involves the reconstruction and widening of the existing sidewalk along the entire length of the town 6 
into an 8-foot-wide concrete path which can be utilized by both cyclists and pedestrians. 7 

8 
The Essential Services Board recommended approval to forwarding this request to Town Council on 9 
January 11, 2024. 10 

11 
Background 12 
The inspiration for this project was first conveyed in the Town’s 2017 Bicycle-Pedestrian Master Plan. 13 
This plan states, “An efficient bicycling and pedestrian network is also a critical element to realizing 14 
the potential economic benefits to be gained from non-motorized forms of transportation. Individually, 15 
walking and bicycling is much less expensive than operating a motorized vehicle and ultimately can 16 
contribute to a healthier population, resulting in reduced health care costs for both the individual and 17 
community.  A well-connected bicycling and pedestrian network with sidewalks as wide as eight feet 18 
help make a community a more attractive place to live, work, and play….” 19 

20 
The Town applied to the TPO for grant funding to conduct a feasibility study for this project in 2017, 21 
which is the first step in the design and construction process through the TPO.  22 

23 
In 2019, the Town Council adopted Res. No. 2019-01, authorizing staff to submit a grant application 24 
for design and construction to the TPO through the TPO’s annual Priority Projects program.  25 

26 
In 2021, the Town Council voted unanimously to increase the Town’s local match contribution to 15% 27 
to improve the project’s score and rank.  The stronger score, in combination with other projects coming 28 
off the project list, moved the Town’s sidewalk project up into the top 3 of 17 bicycle and pedestrian 29 

Item 7-B



Request for Continued Support   

S. Peninsula Sidewalk Project 

 

 

projects awaiting funding.  The 2021 Priority Project list was approved by the TPO Board on June 23, 30 
2021. The project is currently incorporated into FDOT’s draft Five-Year Work Program and is in the 31 
2023 Priority Project list adopted by the TPO on June 28, 2023.  32 
 33 
FDOT is the steward of Federal-aid transportation funds and is responsible for oversight of federally 34 
funded projects on behalf of the Federal Highway Administration. Projects using federal transportation 35 
dollars allocated through state DOTs and TPOs can only be administered by qualified agencies known 36 
as Local Agency Program (LAP) certified agencies that have the in-house engineering and fiscal 37 
capacity to oversee large-scale construction. The LAP is FDOT’s primary delivery mechanism for 38 
local agency projects to develop, design, and construct transportation facilities with Federal-Aid funds.    39 
 40 
Without its own in-house engineering staff, the Town does not qualify as a LAP-certified agency, and 41 
so has asked Volusia County Public Works to administer the project on the Town’s behalf.  The Town 42 
Council approved a Joint Project Agreement with Volusia County on May 18, 2023, to provide design, 43 
construction, and administration services on behalf of the Town. Volusia County also approved said 44 
agreement on June 20, 2023. Under this arrangement, the Town will reimburse the County for the costs 45 
to design and build the project. The Town will be able to meet its 15% match obligation for paying for 46 
100% of the design costs. The Town will also get credit for the survey work for the south half of the 47 
project that was performed in conjunction with the septic-to-sewer design plans. Funding for 48 
construction will be arranged between FDOT and Volusia County as the LAP-certified agency. The 49 
Town will still be responsible for reimbursing Volusia County staff for its costs to administer the 50 
project. 51 
 52 
Update 53 
In October 2023, Town staff was informed by the TPO that the construction of the project would need 54 
to be split up into phases over a three-year period between 2026-2028 based on future funding 55 
availability.  A map of the three phases is provided on Attachment 1. 56 
 57 
As part of the support letter, applicants are required to provide an updated engineer’s cost estimate 58 
(Attachment 2).  Details of this updated estimate include: 59 
 60 

• Phase 1 = costs increased by over 48% 61 

• Phase 2 = costs decrease by 4.5% 62 

• Phase 3 = costs decrease by 5.5% 63 
 64 
The Town’s engineering consultant, Mead and Hunt, has confirmed that while several materials have 65 
come down in cost slightly over the past year, the unit cost of trench drainage has risen significantly.  66 
The Phase 1 segment is the only one with trench drains.  Additionally, excavation and fencing costs 67 
have also risen.  68 
 69 
For now, and each year until design begins, the Town is required to submit a letter to the TPO 70 
reaffirming its commitment to the project (see this year’s draft letter, Attachment 3). 71 
 72 
Recommendation 73 
Staff recommends the Board forward the request for continued support of the S. Peninsula sidewalk 74 
project to the Town Council with a recommendation of approval. 75 
 

 

 



Request for Continued Support 

S. Peninsula Sidewalk Project

Attachments 

1. Project phasing map

2. Updated cost estimates

3. Draft letter of support



P
E

N
IN

S
U

L
A

 D
R

 S

C
R

 4
0
7

5
 (A

T
L
A

N
T

IC
 A

V
 S

)

BEACH ST

D
IX

IE
 D

R

RAINS DR

SAILFISH DR
OCEAN WAY DR

ANCHOR DR

CINDY LN

A
T

L
A

N
T

IC
 S

H
O

R
E

L
IN

E

CALUMET AV

MARIE DR

J
A

N
A

 D
R

MAR AZUL NORTH

F
R

O
N

T
 S

T

U
S

 H
W

Y
 1

 (D
IX

IE
 F

R
E

E
W

A
Y

 S
)

C
A

N
D

L
E

W
O

O
D

 L
N

M
IC

H
AEL LN

P
O

N
C

E
 D

E
 L

E
O

N
 C

IR

JENNIFER CIR

SUN DUNES CIR

MAURA TER

IN
LET H

AR
B
O

R
 R

D

R
IV

E
R

G
L

E
N

 B
L
V

D

RAINS CT

B
U

S
C

H
M

A
N

 D
R

HARBOUR VILLAGE BLVD

OLD CARRIAGE RD

OLD CARRIAGE RD

OCEANVIEW
 AV

A
T

L
A

N
T

IC
 A

V
 S

ALBERTA AV

GLENVIEW
 AV

INLET POINT BLVD

LIGHTHOUSE DR

L
IN

K
S

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 D
R

AURORA AV

SOUTH TURN CIR

LOGGERHEAD CT

R
O

B
E

R
T

 A
 M

E
R

R
E

L
L

 P
K

W
Y

M
O

N
T

R
O

S
E

 A
V

BAY HARBOUR DR

POMPANO DR

BEVERLY HILLS AV

RIVERSEDGE VILLAGE LN

M
A

R
 A

Z
U

L
 S

O
U

T
HBOUNTY LN

ARENA BLANCA

SEAHAVEN DR

TINA MARIA CIR

RIVERWALK VILLAGE CT

COASTAL OAKS CIR

PO
N

C
E TER

R
AC

E C
IR

MARSH CT

SEAWINDS CIR

PONCE INLET KEY LN

K
E

L
LY

 B
E

A
 C

T A
Q

U
A

 C
L
A

R
A

CARIBBEAN WAY

DAGGETT COVE DR

OAK HAMMOCK CT

ASHLEY CT

BEACH RAMP

B
E

A
C

O
N

 C
T

WINTERHAVEN  AV

D
A

G
G

E
T

T
 C

IR

U
S

 H
W

Y
 1

 (R
ID

G
E

W
O

O
D

 A
V

)

A
T

L
A

N
T

IC
 S

H
O

R
E

L
IN

E

TOWN OF PONCE INLET STREETS

·

0
0
.2

0
.4

0
.6

0
.8

0
.1

M
ile

s

Atlantic Ocean

Halifax River

Ponce Inlet M
obility Project Segm

ents

Segm
ent 1: Lighthouse D

rive to O
cean W

ay D
rive

Segm
ent 2: O

cean W
ay D

rive to C
indy Lane

Segm
ent 3: C

indy Lane to north Tow
n lim

it 

Attachment 1

prippey
Polygonal Line

prippey
Polygonal Line

prippey
Sticky Note
Accepted set by prippey

prippey
Polygonal Line

prippey
Oval

prippey
Oval

prippey
Oval

prippey
Oval

prippey
Line

prippey
Line

prippey
Line



FDOT Pay Item No . Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Cost

0101 1 MOBILIZATION(10% x sum of all items) LS 10% 1 $ 163,148.43

0102 1

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC(10% x sum of all 

items) LS 10% 1 $ 163,148.43

0104 10 3 SEDIMENT BARRIER LF $ 2.62 1,500 $ 3,930.00

0104 18 INLET PROTECTION SYSTEM EA $ 187.92 6 $ 1,127.52

0110 2 2 SELECTIVE CLEARING AND GRUBBING, TREES R AC $ 35527.83 0.5 $ 17,763.92

0110 4 10 REMOVAL OF EXIST CONC SY $ 38.84 1,000 $ 38,840.00

0120 1 REGULAR EXCAVATION CY $ 15.43 5,748 $ 88,691.64

0120 2 2 BORROW EXCAVATION, TRUCK MEASURE CY $ 35.55 417 $ 14,824.35

0327 70 1 MILLING EXIST ASPH PAVT, 1" AVG DEPTH SY $ 3.83 583 $ 2,232.89

0337 7 80 ASPH CONC FC,TRAFFIC B,FC-9.5,PG 76-22 TN $ 186.45 32 $ 5,966.40

0400 0 11 CONC CLASS NS, GRAVITY WALL CY $ 1200.00 55 $ 66,000.00

0425 1351 INLETS, CURB, TYPE P-5, <10' EA $ 11000.00 6 $ 66,000.00

0425 6 VALVE BOXES, ADJUST EA $ 850.00 2 $ 1,700.00

0436 1 1 TRENCH DRAIN, STANDARD LF $ 630.20 1,500 $ 945,300.00

0520 1 10 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, TYPE F LF $ 51.25 1,500 $ 76,875.00

0522 1 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 4" SY $ 76.21 1,333 $ 101,587.93

0527 2 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SF $ 43.68 252 $ 11,007.36

0550 10218 FENCING, TYPE B, 0.0-5.0', RESET EXIST LF $ 250.00 600 $ 150,000.00

0570 1 2 PERFORMANCE TURF, SOD SY $ 4.53 1,333 $ 6,038.49

0580 2 2 LANDSCAPE- RELOCATE TREE, PALMS >14' EA $ 6200.00 3 $ 18,600.00

0700 1 11 SINGLE POST SIGN, F&I GM, <12 SF AS $ 507.54 4 $ 2,030.16

0700 1 50 SINGLE POST SIGN, RELOCATE AS $ 279.80 8 $ 2,238.40

0711 11123 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 12" LF $ 4.03 1,400 $ 5,642.00

0711 11125 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 24" LF $ 6.86 75 $ 514.50

1644800 FIRE HYDRANT, RELOCATE EA $ 4573.70 1 $ 4,573.70

A $ 1,957,781.11

B $ 293,667.17

C $ 587,334.33

D $ 19,760.00

E $ 2,858,543.00

*Construction cost estimate does not include utility relocation costs or right-of-way costs.

Multiplier
Adjusted Cost 

Estimate

1.04 $2,964,309.09

1.07 $3,071,024.22

1.11 $3,181,581.09

1.15 $3,289,754.85

1.19 $3,395,027.00

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2027) 3.40%

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2028) 3.20%

3.70%

3.60%

3.60%

Year 1 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2024)

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2026)

Year 2 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2025)

TABLE 5-1. South Peninsula Drive Quantities and Cost Estimate (Segment 1 - Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR CONSTRUCTION (SEGMENT 1)

Ponce Inlet Mobility Project

TABLE 5-2. South Peninsula Drive Quantities and Cost Estimate (Segment 1 - Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

FDOT Inflation-Adjusted Estimate Inflation Factor

SUBTOTAL

CEI (15%) (A x 0.15)

ENGINEERING AND DESIGN (30%) (A x 0.30)

SURVEY AND ROW MAPPING ($0.52 per sq. ft x 38,000 sf))

ROUNDED TOTAL ( SUM A..D)

Attachment 2



FDOT Pay Item No . Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Cost

0101 1 MOBILIZATION(10% x sum of all items) LS 10% 1 $108,048.07 

0102 1 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC(10% x sum of all items) LS 10% 1 $108,048.07 

0104 10 3 SEDIMENT BARRIER LF $2.34 7,000 $16,380.00 

0104 18 INLET PROTECTION SYSTEM EA $187.92 4 $751.68 

0110 2 2 SELECTIVE CLEARING AND GRUBBING, TREES R AC $35,527.83 2.4 $85,266.79 

0110 4 10 REMOVAL OF EXIST CONC SY $38.84 4,667 $181,266.28 

0120 1 REGULAR EXCAVATION CY $15.43 691 $10,662.13 

0120 2 2 BORROW EXCAVATION, TRUCK MEASURE CY $35.55 1,944 $69,109.20 

0327 70 1 MILLING EXIST ASPH PAVT, 1" AVG DEPTH SY $3.83 417 $1,597.11 

0337 7 80 ASPH CONC FC,TRAFFIC B,FC-9.5,PG 76-22 TN $186.45 23 $4,288.35 

0425 5 MANHOLE, ADJUST EA $1,402.53 6 $8,415.18 

0522 1 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 4" SY $76.21 6,222 $474,178.62 

0522 2 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 6" SY $119.30 1,150 $137,195.00 

0527 2 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SF $43.68 180 $7,862.40 

0550 10218 FENCING, TYPE B, 0.0-5.0', RESET EXIST LF $250.00 100 $25,000.00 

0570 1 2 PERFORMANCE TURF, SOD SY $4.53 6,222 $28,185.66 

0700 1 50 SINGLE POST SIGN, RELOCATE AS $279.80 11 $3,077.80 

0711 11123 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 12" LF $4.03 1,000 $4,030.00 

0711 11125 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 24" LF $6.86 75 $514.50 

0751 37 TRASH RECEPTACLE EA $1,200.00 1 $1,200.00 

0751 36 12 BICYCLE RACK, FURNISH & INSTALL, 2-6 BI EA $1,500.00 1 $1,500.00 

0751 38 11 BENCH, F&I, ALUMINUM EA $5,000.00 4 $20,000.00 

A $1,296,576.84 

B $194,486.53 

C $388,973.05 

D $91,000.00 

E $ 1,971,036.00

*Construction cost estimate does not include utility relocation costs or right-of-way costs.

Table 5-4 South Peninsula Drive FDOT Inflation-Adjusted Esimate (Segment 2 Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

Multiplier
Adjusted Cost 

Estimate

1.04 $2,043,964.33

1.07 $2,117,547.05

1.11 $2,193,778.74

1.15 $2,268,367.22

1.19 $2,340,954.97

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2027) 3.40%

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2028) 3.20%

3.70%

3.60%

3.60%

Year 1 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2024)

Year 2 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2025)

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2026)

TABLE 5-3. South Peninsula Drive Quantities and Cost Estimate (Segment 2 - Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR CONSTRUCTION (SEGMENT 2)

Ponce Inlet Mobility Project

Inflation FactorFDOT Inflation-Adjusted Estimate

SUBTOTAL

CEI (15%) (A x 0.15)

ENGINEERING AND DESIGN (30%) (A x 0.30)

SURVEY AND ROW MAPPING ($0.52 per sq. ft x 175,000 sf))

ROUNDED TOTAL ( SUM A..D)



FDOT Pay Item No . Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Cost

0101 1 MOBILIZATION(10% x sum of all items) LS 10% 1 $ 144,390.80

0102 1 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC(10% x sum of all items) LS 10% 1 $ 144,390.80

0104 10 3 SEDIMENT BARRIER LF $2.34 10,000 $ 23,400.00

0104 18 INLET PROTECTION SYSTEM EA $187.92 10 $ 1,879.20

0110 2 2 SELECTIVE CLEARING AND GRUBBING, TREES R AC $35,527.83 3.4 $ 120,794.62

0110 4 10 REMOVAL OF EXIST CONC SY $38.84 7,133 $ 277,045.72

0110 7 1 MAILBOX, F&I SINGLE EA $357.54 2 $ 715.08

0120 1 REGULAR EXCAVATION CY $15.43 988 $ 15,244.84

0120 2 2 BORROW EXCAVATION, TRUCK MEASURE CY $35.55 2,778 $ 98,757.90

0327 70 1 MILLING EXIST ASPH PAVT, 1" AVG DEPTH SY $3.83 500 $ 1,915.00

0337 7 80 ASPH CONC FC,TRAFFIC B,FC-9.5,PG 76-22 TN $186.45 28 $ 5,220.60

0425 1521 INLETS, DT BOT, TYPE C, <10' EA $7,002.84 5 $ 35,014.20

0425 5 MANHOLE, ADJUST EA $1,402.53 4 $ 5,610.12

0520 1 10 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, TYPE F LF $51.25 250 $ 12,812.50

0522 1 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 4" SY $76.21 8,889 $ 677,430.69

0522 2 CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS, 6" SY $119.30 625 $ 74,562.50

0527 2 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SF $43.68 216 $ 9,434.88

0570 1 2 PERFORMANCE TURF, SOD SY $4.53 8,889 $ 40,267.17

0580 2 2 LANDSCAPE- RELOCATE TREE, PALMS >14' EA $5,230.98 6 $ 31,385.87

0700 1 11 SINGLE POST SIGN, F&I GM, <12 SF AS $507.54 4 $ 2,030.16

0700 1 50 SINGLE POST SIGN, RELOCATE AS $279.80 18 $ 5,036.40

0711 11123 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 12" LF $4.03 1,200 $ 4,836.00

0711 11125 THERMOPLASTIC, STD, WHITE, SOLID, 24" LF $6.86 75 $ 514.50

A $ 1,732,689.54

B $ 259,903.43

C $ 519,806.86

D $ 130,000.00

E $ 2,642,400.00

*Construction cost estimate does not include utility relocation costs or right-of-way costs. $ 1,438,000

Table 5-6 South Peninsula Drive FDOT Inflation-Adjusted Esimate (Segment 3 Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

Multiplier
Adjusted Cost 

Estimate

1.04 $2,740,168.80

1.07 $2,838,814.88

1.11 $2,941,012.21

1.15 $3,041,006.63

1.19 $3,138,318.84

ENGINEERING AND DESIGN (30%) (A x 0.30)

SURVEY AND ROW MAPPING ($0.52 per sq. ft x 250,000 sf))

ROUNDED TOTAL ( SUM A..D)

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2028) 3.20%

FDOT Inflation-Adjusted Estimate Inflation Factor

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2026) 3.60%

Year 2 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2025) 3.60%

3.70%Year 1 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2024)

Year 3 Inflation-Adjusted Estimate (2027) 3.40%

TABLE 5-5. South Peninsula Drive Quantities and Cost Estimate (Segment 3 - Updated December 2023 by Mead & Hunt)

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR CONSTRUCTION (SEGMENT 3)

Ponce Inlet Mobility Project

SUBTOTAL

CEI (15%) (A x 0.15)



Attachment 3 

February ___, 2024 

Ms. Colleen Nicoulin, Executive Director  
River to Sea Transportation Planning Organization 
1 Deuce Court, Daytona Beach 32124 

RE: Letter of Continued Support for the Town of Ponce Inlet’s S. Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Mobility 
Project on FDOT’s Five-Year Work Program and the River to Sea TPO’s Priority Project List 

Dear Colleen: 

The Town of Ponce Inlet is pleased to indicate its continued support of its previously submitted Mobility 
Project and wishes for it to remain on the FDOT Five-Year Work Program and the River to Sea TPO’s Priority 
Project list for 2024. The project consists of replacing the existing sub-standard sidewalk on S. Peninsula Drive 
with an 8-foot concrete sidewalk along the entire length of the Town. The goal of the project is to enhance 
mobility and safety for residents and visitors by providing an ADA-compliant route for pedestrians and cyclists 
connecting the Town’s homes, local businesses, cultural centers, and public parks.  

The Ponce Inlet Town Council affirmed the Town’s continued support, including a local match pledge of 15%, 
at its regular meeting on _________, 2024.  

Please direct any questions or concerns about this project to me at mdisher@ponce-inlet.org or (386) 236-
2150. 

Sincerely, 

Michael E. Disher, AICP 
Town of Ponce Inlet 
Town Manager 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

Date: February 5, 2024 

Subject: Request for Use of Town Property: 2024 Turtle Day 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2024 

The Volusia County Marine Science Center’s Annual Turtle Day celebration is scheduled for 
Saturday, April 6, 2024. This is an educational event held at the Marine Science Center to 
showcase the marine life of Volusia County and the work the Marine Science Center performs at 
its animal hospital. Organizers expect approximately 2,500 attendees throughout the event’s five-
hour timeframe. To assist with traffic and safety concerns, organizers have confirmed there will 
not be a turtle release as part of the event, however there may be one the day prior. Mr. Chad 
Macfie, Marine Science Center Manager, has submitted the special event permit application 
through the Cultural Services Department.  

In years past, Mr. Macfie has requested event co-sponsorship in the form of using the Town’s 
means of advertising, waiving the special event application fees, waiving Town personnel fees, 
and permission to place temporary right-of-way signs at pre-approved locations at Town Hall on 
Atlantic Avenue and Peninsula Drive. The Marine Science Center was responsible for the cost of 
off-duty Public Works and Police services and provided proof of insurance.  

Since the last Turtle Day was held, the Town has updated its Special Event ordinance and criteria 
for event co-sponsorship approval:  

Sec. 51-2. – Definitions: Town-sponsored event 
Town-sponsored event means that the town, solely or as a co-sponsor of the event, produces 
and/or coordinates the event, or contributes town services, funds, staff, or aid of any kind 
as a co-sponsor, after determining that the event:  

(a) Is planned, organized, and conducted by the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board,
Inc., or any established not-for-profit organizations and clubs based in Ponce Inlet,
such as the Ponce Inlet Veterans Association, Ponce Inlet Lions Club, Ponce Inlet
Garden Club, Ponce Inlet Women’s Club, and the Ponce Inlet Art Guild, that annually
provide a copy of their currently valid IRS tax exemption certificate as an established
501(c)3 organization; and/or

Item 7C - 1



(b) Has been traditionally co-sponsored by the Town as provided in Sec. 51-8(a).

Sec. 51-8(a). – Co-sponsorship or co-sponsored event criteria and standards: 
(a) Based on the Town’s long tradition of co-sponsoring certain annual events based on

repeated findings that they provide a local commemoration of a national holiday or
provide historical, educational, cultural enrichment or recreational experiences to the
public and town residents, the town council, in its sole discretion, may grant full co-
sponsorship to those long-standing events identified and approved via resolution.

Pursuant to Sec. 51-2. and Sec. 51-8(a), the Turtle Day event does not meet the criteria for event 
co-sponsorship. For this event, staff must refer to Sec. 51-8(d) below,  

(d)  For events that do not meet the definition of Town-sponsored event under Sec. 51-2
described above, a written request shall be delivered to the town’s cultural services
department at least 60 days prior to the event by an applicant if use of town facilities,
parking on town property, and/or street closures are found to be required for the event
based on the findings of the town’s special event review committee. Town staff may
provide a report and recommendation to the town council for review.

Acknowledging that the Turtle Day event does not meet the current criteria for co-sponsorship 
request, the applicant has submitted his request for the use of Town property during the event along 
with the special event permit application packet (Attachment 1). This request includes closure of 
both the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot for this event, as well as the placement of 
temporary signs on Town property.  

SUMMARY: 
The request is for use of town property for the Turtle Day event scheduled for April 6, 2024, 
including closure of the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot and placement of temporary 
signs on Town property.   

         February 5, 2024   
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager          Date 

Attachments:  
1. Application Packet_2024 Turtle Day



Item 7C-2









































Report to Town Council 

Topic: Consideration of a three-year extension of Mead & 
Hunt’s engineering services contract. 

Summary:  Please see the attached letter from Mead & Hunt, a 
copy of the proposed contract and fee schedule, and a comparison 
of the current and proposed fees. 

Suggested motion:   Staff recommends approval of the proposed three-
year extension to the engineering services contract with Mead & Hunt. 

Requested by: Brad T. Blais, P.E., Vice President/Client Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



Mead & Hunt | 4401 Eastport Parkway, Port Orange, FL, 32127 | 386-761-6810 | meadhunt.com 

February 5, 2024 

Mike Disher Email:  mdisher@ponce-inlet.org 

Town Manager  

Town of Ponce Inlet  

4300 South Atlantic Avenue 

Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127 

Subject:  Engineering Services Contract – Amendment 2024 

Dear Mr. Disher, 

As you are aware, Mead & Hunt’s Engineering Services Contract with the Town of Ponce Inlet expires on 

February 21, 2024.   We appreciate the Town’s willingness to extend the contract for an additional three 

(3) years as stated in the attached contract amendment.   We enjoy working with the Town’s staff and

hope to continue.  Please advise us of when the amendment will be presented to the Council so that we 

may be present to respond to any questions or concerns. 

We appreciate this opportunity to continue our service to the Town.  If you have any questions or require 

further assistance, please do not hesitate to call. 

Respectfully, 

Brad T. Blais, P.E.  Cassandra Cissell, P.E. 

Vice President/Client Manager Project Manager 

BTB/CC:dp 

Item 8A - 1

mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org


ADDENDUM TO 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

CONTRACT BETWEEN 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA AND 

MEAD & HUNT, INC. 
Dated February 21, 2002 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ___ day of ______ 2024 by and between TOWN 
OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as "the TOWN") and MEAD & 
HUNT, INC., a Wisconsin Corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "the CONSULTANT"). 

WHEREAS, the TOWN and the CONSULTANT entered into an Agreement on February 21, 2002 with an initial 
term of ten (10) years; which has been mutually agreed upon for several additional three (3) year term extensions -
the most recent of which will expire on February 21, 2024. 

WHEREAS, the continuing services contract allows for direct hourly billing rate adjustments approved by the Town 
Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that both the TOWN and the CONSULTANT agree to execute this agreement 
for an additional three (3) year term extension, expiring February 21, 2027. 

WHEREFORE, the parties have executed the agreement this day and date first written above. 

Witness 

��p� 
·:::::V .. � \ 5 f; s:,a±±

Witness TOWN OF PONCE INLET 

By: -----------
Town Manager 

Attest: ___________ _ 
Town Clerk 

Item 8A - 2



Item 8A - 3



Previous Rate & Fee Structure



Previous Rate & Fee Structure



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Lien Abatement Request: Cynthia House and Rhonda 

Witwer – 4620 Riverwalk Village Court #7302 
 
Summary: Please see the attached staff report. 

  
Suggested motion: At Council’s discretion. 

 
Requested by:   Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 
   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-B 



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET – PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE WHILE 

ENSURING PONCE INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN THE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  

From: David Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director

Date: February 5, 2024 

Subject: Code Enforcement Abatement Request 
Code Case Number 2022-684 Cynthia House & Rhonda Witwer 
4620 Riverwalk Village Court #7302 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2024 

INTRODUCTION: 

Ms. House and Ms. Witwer, the owners of the subject property, are seeking a reduction or 
abatement of a $5,750 Code Enforcement lien imposed on June 5, 2023. This amount 
comprises a $5,500 fine, which accumulated at a rate of $25 per day for 220 days, along 
with an additional $250 administrative fee, resulting in a total of $5,750. (EXHIBIT #1) 

It should be noted that the property achieved compliance on January 11, 2024. 

BACKGROUND: 

On November 1, 2022, staff was alerted to the expiration of the rental permit.  A formal 
notice of violation was issued, with a compliance date of November 21, 2022. 
(EXHIBIT #2) 

November 11, 2022, Ms. House emailed Travis Mincey, Rental Housing Inspector, 
confirming that she had received the certified notice of violation and had obtained the new 
permit application. (EXHIBIT #3) 

March 28, 2023, after several months of non-compliance, a formal notice of hearing was 
issued to the property owners. (EXHIBIT #4) 

Item 8-B



Page 2 of 3 

The Code Enforcement Board (CEB) heard this case at its meeting on April 24, 2023, at 
which the CEB ordered that the case be continued to the next scheduled meeting on May 
22, 2023. (EXHIBIT #5) 

The CEB subsequently heard this case on May 22, 2023, which found the owner in 
violation with the cited sections of adopted code. The CEB granted the owner 14 days (on 
or before June 5, 2023) to have the property in compliance. 
(EXHIBIT #6, 7 & 8) 

At the July 24, 2023, CEB hearing, the Board confirmed that the property remained in 
violation of its order and issued the Order of Non-Compliance and Imposition of Fine, 
retroactive to the original compliance deadline (June 5, 2023). (EXHIBIT # 9 & 10) 

On September 25, 2023, the CEB authorized staff to collect outstanding code enforcement 
lines for non-homesteaded properties that were due to the Town.  This authorization was 
affirmed by the Town Council on October 19, 2023.  This particular property was identified 
to be one such non-homestead parcel with an outstanding lien of over 90 days, making it 
eligible for foreclosure in accordance with Florida Statute 162.09(3). 

On October 25, 2023, staff sent certified letters to the owners addresses on file, advising 
them of the potential foreclosure proceedings and how to avoid said proceedings. 
(EXHIBIT # 11) 

Options to avoid foreclosure proceedings include: 

• Bring the property into compliance (pay for the expired rental permits);

• Pay the outstanding lien;

• Once in compliance with the adopted regulations, request a reduction/abatement of the

outstanding lien.

The certified letter was received by the owners on November 2, 2023. 

On January 11, 2024, staff spoke with Ms. House about the outstanding lien and what was 
required for compliance.  On January 13, 2024, the outstanding permits were paid for in 
full therefore ceasing the accrual of the lien.  

Staff received the request of reduction/abatement request from the owner on January 15, 
2024 (EXHIBIT #1). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Per Florida Statutes Section162.09(3), “…the lien runs in favor of the local governing 
body”, i.e. Town Council. Any reduction or abatement of said lien is entirely at the 
Council’s discretion.  If Council desires to reduce the lien, staff would request such 



Page 3 of 3 

reduction be conditioned on the reduced amount being paid within 10 business days, or 
else the full outstanding fine/lien of $5,750 shall be paid. 

EXHIBITS 
1. Lien Abatement Request

2. Notice of Violation and Certified Receipts

3. Email from Ms. House

4. Notice of Hearing and Certified Receipt

5. Code Board Minutes

6. Code Board Minutes

7. Copy of Rental Agreement

8. Copy of the code Enforcement Board Order

9. Code Board Minutes

10. Code Board Order of Non-Compliance / Imposition of Fine

11. Certified letter of potential foreclosure and certified receipts



dlear
Text Box

dlear
Text Box
EXHIBIT 1





dlear
Text Box

dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 2













dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 3



dlear
Typewritten Text
     EXHIBIT 4















dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 5





dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 6





dlear
Typewritten Text
     EXHIBIT 7



dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 8





dlear
Typewritten Text
    EXHIBIT 9





dlear
Typewritten Text
   EXHIBIT 10



dlear
Typewritten Text



dlear
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 11









 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Lien foreclosures as recommended by the Code Enforcement 

Board: 
 

• Case #2018-148: 42 Jana Drive, Owner: Frank Kohlweiss 
 

• Case #2021-217: 48 Inlet Harbor Road, Owner: Southern 
Bell Telephone & Telegraph Company 

 
• Case #2022-684: 4620 Riverwalk Village Court #7302, 

Owners: Cynthia House & Rhonda Witwer 
 

• Case #2022-758: 4505 South Atlantic Avenue #703, Owners: 
Doris & Jerry Clark, etc. 

 
Summary: See attached staff report and supporting document. 
 
Suggested motion:  As determined by Council. 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 
   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   10-A 



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET – PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE WHILE ENSURING

PONCE INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN THE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

TO: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

FROM: David Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 

THROUGH: Darren Lear, Planning & Development Director 

DATE: February 5, 2024 

SUBJECT: Request to start formal foreclosure proceedings on non-homesteaded properties 
with outstanding liens.  

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2024 

DISCUSSION: 

The purpose of this memorandum is to request Town Council approval to start formal foreclosure 
proceedings on non-homesteaded properties with outstanding liens.  The liens represent the fines for 
uncorrected violations and continue to accrue until compliance is achieved. The fines become liens on 
the property once the CEB’s written order is recorded in the public records of Volusia County. The 
liens must be paid if the property or any other property owned by the same entity is sold. If that does 
not occur, the lien expires after 20 years, unless the lienholder renews the lien. 

The Local Code Enforcement Board Act, or F.S. Chapter 162, grants local code boards and special 
masters a wide range of authority. It allows the Town’s CEB to adopt its own procedures, have 
administrative powers, and set fines, F.S. Chapter 162 also authorizes the local governing body’s 
attorney to foreclose on a lien or to sue to recover the amount of lien, plus accrued interest. However, 
in accordance with Article 10, Section 4 of the State of Florida Constitution, only liens on non-
homesteaded properties can be foreclosed; homesteaded properties are exempt. 

Per Florida statutes 162.09(3) (see attachment 1) “… after 3 months form filing of any such lien which 
remains unpaid, the enforcement board may authorize the local governing body attorney to foreclose 
on the lien or to sue to recover a money judgement for the amount of the lien plus accrued interest.  

The CEB voted to authorize foreclosure proceedings to be brought before the Town Council for 
approval on January 22, 2024. The process for foreclosure is outlined below:   

1. Send certified letter to property owners with notice that:

Item 10-A



Page 2 of 3 

a. the outstanding lien has not been paid for over 90 days;

b. the owners have 60 days to either pay the lien or request and abatement or reduction

with the Town Council; and

c. if neither action is taken after 60 days, the Town will start official foreclosure

proceedings on the lien.

2. Hold Code Enforcement Board hearing to authorize the Town Attorney to proceed with

foreclosure of the lien.

Staff identified eight non-homesteaded properties that qualified for foreclosure within the Florida 
statutes. Following the October 19, 2023, Town Council meeting, Staff sent certified letters to each of 
the eight properties notifying them of their options and providing a payment deadline to avoid 
foreclosure proceedings. All eight properties are now in compliance with the adopted regulations.  Four 
properties have paid the outstanding liens to avoid legal action. One owner has requested a 
reduction/abatement hearing after bringing the property into compliance. 

On January 22, 2024, the CEB gave approval to start foreclosure proceedings on the following four 
properties listed below, with the understanding that proceedings could be delayed for one property 
pending a request for a lien reduction/abatement hearing.  

Address Lien Started / 

Lien stopped 

Daily fine Total lien 

amount 

Comments 

42 Jana Drive April 22, 2019 
June 14, 2021 

(784 days) 

$20 per day $15,910 In Compliance.  
Town Council 

denied abatement 
request on August 

17, 2023 

48 Inlet Harbor Road November 9, 2021  
December 17, 2021 

(80 days) 

$50 per day $4,250 In Compliance.  
Owned by a Public 

Utility  

4620 Riverwalk 
Village Avenue #7302 

June 5, 2023 
January 12, 2024 

(221 days) 

$25 per day $5,775 In Compliance. 
Requesting 

reduction/abatement 

4505 South Atlantic 
Avenue # 703 

March 13, 2023 
January 25, 2024 

(318 days) 

$250 per day $53,500 In Compliance. 

Total $79,435 

All the liens referenced above have remained unpaid for over 90 days. Additionally, per F.S Chapter 
162.10, the local governing body is entitled to collect all costs incurred in recording and satisfying a 
valid lien.  

RECOMMEDATION:  

Staff recommends the Town Council authorize the Town Attorney to start foreclosures on all non-
homesteaded properties in accordance with Florida Statutes 162.09(3). 



Page 3 of 3 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

162.09 Administrative fines; costs of repair; liens. — 

* * *
(3) A certified copy of an order imposing a fine, or a fine plus repair costs, may be recorded in the
public records and thereafter shall constitute a lien against the land on which the violation exists and
upon any other real or personal property owned by the violator. Upon petition to the circuit court, such
order shall be enforceable in the same manner as a court judgment by the sheriffs of this state, including
execution and levy against the personal property of the violator, but such order shall not be deemed to
be a court judgment except for enforcement purposes. A fine imposed pursuant to this part shall
continue to accrue until the violator comes into compliance or until judgment is rendered in a suit filed
pursuant to this section, whichever occurs first. A lien arising from a fine imposed pursuant to this
section runs in favor of the local governing body, and the local governing body may execute a
satisfaction or release of lien entered pursuant to this section. After 3 months from the filing of any
such lien which remains unpaid, the enforcement board may authorize the local governing body
attorney to foreclose on the lien or to sue to recover a money judgment for the amount of the lien plus
accrued interest. No lien created pursuant to the provisions of this part may be foreclosed on real
property which is a homestead under s. 4, Art. X of the State Constitution. The money judgment
provisions of this section shall not apply to real property or personal property which is covered under
s. 4(a), Art. X of the State Constitution.

162.10 Duration of lien.—No lien provided under the Local Government Code Enforcement Boards 
Act shall continue for a period longer than 20 years after the certified copy of an order imposing a fine 
has been recorded, unless within that time an action is commenced pursuant to s. 162.09(3) in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. In an action to foreclose on a lien or for a money judgment, the prevailing 
party is entitled to recover all costs, including a reasonable attorney’s fee, that it incurs in the action. 
The local governing body shall be entitled to collect all costs incurred in recording and satisfying 

a valid lien. The continuation of the lien effected by the commencement of the action shall not be good 
against creditors or subsequent purchasers for valuable consideration without notice, unless a notice of 
lis pendens is recorded. 



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Discussion - Proposals for a memorial tribute to Jeff Miller. 

Summary: Council and staff will share ideas on ways that Mr. 
Miller’s memory may be honored. 

Suggested motion: As determined by Council. 

Requested by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-A 



MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council  
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: February 7, 2024 
Subject: Discussion – Proposals for a memorial tribute to Jeff Miller 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2024 

The Town was greatly saddened last month by the sudden death of our longest-serving employee, 
Jeff Miller. Mr. Miller first started with the Town in 1992 in the Public Works Department, and 
for a time served as its Director. He was a highly valued member of our team and was known for 
how much he cared about the town and people of Ponce Inlet. At the January 18, 2024 Town 
Council meeting, Council members and the public discussed different ways to honor him, and 
directed Staff to bring back options for further discussion at the next meeting.  

Ideas from the Council and public at the January meeting included: 
• A memorial in front of the large oak tree in front of the Public Works facility
• Naming or dedicating the Public Works facility after him
• Planting a tree, with a bench and plaque at one of the Town parks.

Jeff’s family, in his obituary, requested, “…that in lieu of flowers, consider planting a tree in his 
honor or making a donation to a charity of your choice. This gesture will ensure his love for nature 
and helping others continues to thrive in our hearts and in the world.” 

The Ponce Inlet Lions Club has also expressed interest in planting a tree in Jeff’s memory or 
contributing to the cost of the Town’s memorial. 

Following the meeting, I requested input from all Town Departments, whose ideas are just as 
varied. Half suggested naming or dedicating the Public Works facility in his honor, while the others 
suggested planting a tree with a bench and plaque in one of the Town parks or other public space 
where the community can visit and enjoy it. Two staff members have offered additional thoughts 
and perspectives (see attached), including dedicating one of the trails or creating a new trail in 
Ponce Preserve or other park.  

Item 13-A

https://www.news-journalonline.com/obituaries/pdtb0689454


Proposals for a Memorial Tribute to Jeff Miller Page 2 

2 

As a point of reference, there is a difference between “dedicating” and “naming.” Dedicating the 
facility would include a plaque to commemorate Jeff Miller’s memory and importance to the 
organization, but would not include naming the building after him. This is what was done for the 
Fire Station in honor of former volunteer firefighter Carolyn Sprague. 

Naming the building would be just that – actually naming the building the “Jeffrey Miller Public 
Works Facility” or something similar. The building would get a new sign with that name, and 
would be referred to that way in all official usage thereafter, just like with Timothy Pollard Park 
or Kay and Ayers Davies Park.  

Staff has begun to explore costs for several of these options. Once the Council has reached a 
decision of which option to pursue, Staff will develop a proposal for further refinement and 
direction.   



Additional Thoughts from Town Staff Members 

From Heather Lill, Utility Billing/Accounting Specialist 
I believe a dedication to an existing nature trail in Ponce Preserve or creation of a new trail (or in 
any one of Jeff’s favorite Parks to work in), would be nice. Something like “Miller’s Path/trail 
/passage,” with a little podium/stand (like you see at the beginning of nature trails describing the 
foliage in that section) - it could mention years of service, etc. Also maybe at the beginning of the 
path a directional symbol in the form of a guitar.  I think a small trail captures the essence of Jeff 
as it aligns more with his love of outdoors.  This is a low-key yet subtle impact - much like Jeff.  He 
was a very spiritual man, a non-conformist, and stayed true to himself.    

Ponce Preserve is one of the gems of Ponce Inlet, and so was Jeff. 

From Lieutenant Corey Mead 
I’ve known Jeff Miller since I started working in Ponce Inlet (my original start date was Sept. 
1993!). While I appreciate the sentiment, I don’t think the building naming is appropriate for him. 
I don’t think he would like that. I know he wasn’t a huge fan of that building, and he was very 
much looking forward to his pending retirement. I think the tree-planting is a great idea.  

Also, when I first started walking the Ormond bridge as part of my exercise routine, I discovered 
these memorial benches: https://the59club.blog/2022/05/16/benches-on-the-halifax-river/. I 
wouldn’t know what quote to say about him [on the bench]– maybe that could be the family’s 
idea(?) 

I would love to see a tree planted behind one of these memorial benches in one of our parks – as 
the tree grew and produced shade we could imagine it would be a place for him to chill out, maybe 
play one of his bass guitars, and relax after so many years of hard work for the Town of Ponce 
Inlet. A few years ago, I bought a bass guitar from Jeff (he had over a hundred) – it was his passion. 
It’s been sitting in a corner/collecting dust, I’m thinking he might motivate me to pick it up and 
learn again. 

Jeff was a good guy, and he will be missed.  

Item 13-A

https://the59club.blog/2022/05/16/benches-on-the-halifax-river/


Report to Town Council 

Topic: Request to change the May 2024 Town Council regular 
meeting date. 

Summary:  A change of date will be proposed for May’s Town Council 
  meeting. 

Suggested motion:  As determined by Council. 

Requested by:   Councilmember Milano 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-B 



MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

To: Town Council  
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: February 7, 2024 
Subject: Request to change the May 2024 regular Town Council meeting date 

Meeting Date: February 15, 2024 

Council member Milano will be out the week of the regular Town Council meeting in May and 
has requested the meeting to be rescheduled. The attached calendar shows dates and times of 
known board meetings and other potential conflicts. Note that the proposed budget workshop on 
May 24th is tentative and has not been officially scheduled. Note also that I will be attending two 
budgeted training conferences that month and will not be available at those times.   

Remaining days available for May include: 
• Tuesday, May 7th

• Monday, May 20th through Friday, May 24th

Per Resolution 2024-02, the meeting time will be at 2:00 p.m., unless the Council selects a different 
time. 

As always, if you are aware of any other conflicts, you may request a change now or in the coming 
year, so long as it is made no later than the regularly scheduled meeting immediately preceding 
the rescheduled meeting. The greater the notice, the better for scheduling future agenda items. 
Thank you. 

Item 13-B



May 2024 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 

5 

Cultural 
Services 
Board Meeting 
5:30 PM 

6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 

Town 
Council 
Meeting 
2:00 PM 

16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 

Volusia 
League of 
Cities Dinner 
6:00 PM 

31 

Town Offices Planning Board 
Closed - 10:00 AM 
Memorial or 
Day 5:30 PM 

APA National Virtual Conference 8th - 10th 

City Managers Conference 29th - 31st

First Budget 
Workshop

Item 13-B



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: From the Town Manager 
 
 
Summary: Please see attached report. 
 
 
Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 
     
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 2/15/2024 

Agenda Item:   15 



MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council  
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: February 8, 2024 
Subject: Town Manager’s Report 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2024 

1. The Town continues to work diligently with staff from the Volusia County Coastal Division
to secure temporary easements from select beachfront property owners to support the
upcoming dredging and beach restoration project. At this time, only 7 properties out of the 50
properties have not yet provided easements to the County. The County’s deadline with the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers to secure all necessary easements is February 29, 2024.

2. County Council updates, February 6, 2024 meeting:

• Item Q – The County has hired Taylor Engineering to conduct a thorough County-wide
beach feasibility and risk assessment as part of its long-term effort to restore the beach.
The assessment is a requirement from FDEP before the County can make use of its
multimillion dollar grant following Hurricane Ian. The study will evaluate different
options such as, “no action, flood proofing/structural elevation, relocation, beach
nourishment, groins, breakwaters, seawalls, revetments, submerged artificial reefs, and
nearshore placement.” Public outreach will be a major component, including multiple
public meetings and a virtual survey. The end product will be a beach management plan
for each of the coastal communities that can be then used to source additional funding
mechanisms and partnerships. Note that this is for long-term projects occurring after
the US Army Corp of Engineers upcoming dredging project later this year.

• Item 4 – The County denied on 2nd reading a nine-month moratorium on development
applications in Heavy Industrial (I-2) zoned properties. This action was related to the
proposed Belvedere Fuel Farm near Ormond Beach, in an effort to provide County staff
time to evaluate and amend permitted and special exception uses to minimize impacts
on surrounding properties. The company had filed a lawsuit in response.

Item 15

https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240206/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240206/Item-Q-11555.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240206/Item-04-11464.pdf


2 

3. Building permit update: The number of permits and applications is down slightly from the 
typical average of 100 permits per month, and much lower than this time last year, when 
hurricane repair permit applications started coming in. 

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total Avg 
Permit 
applications 

94 
           

94 94 

Permits 
issued 

85 
           

85 85 

Plan 
reviews 

85 
           

85 85 

Inspections 243 
           

243 243 

 

4. The Town’s annual audit for Fiscal Year 22-23 is in progress. The Finance Department has 
submitted all required documents to the auditors, who are now preparing their draft report. 
Once complete, the auditors will present their report to the Town Council, which usually occurs 
in April or May. 

5. Over the next few months, Staff will be working on an update to the Town’s 30-year franchise 
agreement with FPL. The agreement establishes the franchise fee charged by the Town to FPL. 
The current agreement was adopted in 1994 and expires this year. Staff is taking this 
opportunity to discuss with FPL how to improve its services to the Town and address other 
important issues. The draft agreement will come to the Council in the form of an ordinance, 
which will need to be adopted at two separate public hearings. 

6. Staff is beginning its budget process for Fiscal Year 24-25. So far, initial budget proposals 
have been submitted by the Cultural Services Board for further research. The Essential 
Services Advisory Board was presented with an initial list of items from Police, Fire, and 
Public Works in January, and will be reviewing them again at its March meeting. Staff is 
considering holding its first budget workshop with the Town Council in May, or June at the 
latest. 

7. Volusia County’s Transform 386 disaster relief project is still underway. The majority of this 
money will be used for housing, either to repair or rebuild homes that were damaged by 
Hurricane Ian. Interested homeowners should contact the County by phone at 386-943-7029 
or by e-mail at transform386@volusia.org. The remaining funds will be used for infrastructure. 
There will be public workshops at the end of February about the infrastructure application 
process. For more information, visit www.transform386.org.  

mailto:transform386@volusia.org
http://www.transform386.org/

	REGULAR MEETING
	7-Consent Agenda.pdf
	7-C (1) TC- 2024 Turtle Day_Request for Use of Town Property.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community





